
Board of Education 
Newtown, Connecticut 

 
Minutes of the Board of Education meeting on January 13, 2015 in the council chambers,  
3 Primrose Street.      
          

K. Alexander, Chair     J. Erardi 
L. Roche, Vice Chair     L. Gejjda        

 K. Hamilton, Secretary (absent)  R. Bienkowski 
D. Leidlein      5  Staff 
J. Vouros       2  Public 
D. Freedman                  2  Press 

 M. Ku 
 
Mr. Alexander called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m. 
Item 1 – Pledge of Allegiance  
Dr. Erardi addressed the Board questions from the previous meeting. 
 
Mrs. Ku asked about stipends and if we knew what parents and the booster club contributes to 
sports and activities. 
Dr. Erardi said many school districts have multiple support groups at the high school for the 
various activities.  It would be a good practice for us at the end of the school year to see what 
they’ve done financially.  We could not run our programs without parent support.  Stipends are 
contractual and ours looks like most other high schools.  He would gather parent contribution 
information. 
 
Mr. Vouros suggested dividing the money equally among all of the people involved in the sports 
and activities.   
Dr. Erardi said there is equity among co-ed sports coaches.  Some seasons are longer than 
others which involves the length of the programs and the number of participants. The stipends 
are part of the NFT contract.   
 
Item 2 – Curriculum Budget 
Dr. Gejda spoke about her part of this budget. 
Mr. Vouros asked if there was enough money to keep programs moving forward and for staff 
training also. 
Dr. Gejda said we’ve trained teacher in readers workshop and will support the elementary staff.  
Staff developers from Columbia continue to come in for the Reed and middle schools.  We were 
able to provide materials and books to get the program started.  She will also pick up the writing 
units for grades K-7 and a summer writers workshop training. 
 
Mr. Freedman asked about the summer workshop and summer institute. 
Dr. Gejda said these are open to every K-8 teacher.  The summer institute provides three 
trainers from Columbia.   
Mr. Freedman asked if we could have teachers trained in order to train others in the district. 
Dr. Gejda said we are doing that with readers workshop at Columbia.   
Mr. Freedman asked about the number of hours per year for professional development. 
Dr. Gejda stated that the district provides 18 hours of opportunities for teachers to participate in 
some type of professional development. 
 
Board of Education    -2-    January 13, 2015 



 
Mr. Freedman referred to the various meetings involving teachers and asked for a breakdown of 
the number participating. 
Mrs. Leidlein asked what the expectation or requirement was for teachers to attend training in 
grades K-8 for reader’s and writers workshops. 
 
Dr. Gejda said the focus is on the English and language arts areas.  Teachers can train 
voluntarily during the summer and we can also require them to attend training during the school 
day.  We have summer training for grades 5-8 teachers.  We encourage teachers in other 
content areas to attend summer training also.  Middle school social studies and science 
teachers collaborate as a team in looking at strategies in English as they apply to their subject 
areas.   
 
Mr. Vouros asked what we pay teachers in the summer. 
Dr. Gejda said by contract it is $150 per day for six hours of training. 
 
Mr. Alexander referred to the reduction in enrollment at the Danbury magnet school. 
Dr. Gejda said the budget allows for 27 places for next year because not all allotted seats were 
being utilized.     
Dr. Erardi said we have the flexibility each year to decide the number of seats for the next year.  
We project eight fewer seats for next year. 
 
Mrs. Roche asked how many teachers are not trained in writers workshop. 
Dr. Gejda said when she started we offered this training.  We should revisit it for everyone if 
possible and break it down into two years.   
 
Mr. Freedman asked about the Powerschool training for two staff members and if it included 
support for parents. 
Dr. Gejda said Pearson runs updates which may cause interruptions to the Parent Portal.  Her 
budget supports the professional development for the district database administrator.  The high 
school also has someone who could use the training. 
 
Mr. Vouros wanted to know the number by grade level of who has not been trained in writers 
workshop summer offerings are nice but many don’t sign up because of the pay.  We need to 
find a solution because they all need to be trained.   
Dr. Gejda said the language arts consultants are coaching the readers and writers workshops.  
If teachers cannot train during the summer, we will bring them in during the year or the following 
summer. 
 
Item 3 – Technology Budget 
Mr. Vouros spoke about the $160,000 removed from the budget and asked what that would 
have been used for.   
 
Mrs. Amodeo said she had two opportunities to replace some of that money.  One was from an 
RFP from the state for testing and also because of a change in the E-rate funding which may 
return some funds.   
 
Mr. Freedman asked if this budget takes into account the decreased enrollment. 
Mrs. Amodeo said it did impact the technology budget because we have to meet the needs of 
the required testing.   
Board of Education    -3-    January 13, 2015 



 
Mr. Freedman referred to changing obsolescence from seven to six years. 
Mrs. Amodeo said we’ve had replacement every seven years but the older the equipment the 
longer it takes to accomplish tasks.  We’re looking to lessen the age of our equipment to 
operate better. 
Mrs. Leidlein asked that with online testing if there were adequate personnel in each school to 
deal with any issues during the testing. 
Mrs. Amodeo said we had a tech person in each school last year and there were also key 
people to float between the labs to provide assistance.   
 
Item 7 – Plant Budget 
Mr. Faiella spoke about equipment and furniture increases.   
Mr. Freedman asked about the water fountain requested in the Reed cafetorium and if 
Chartwells could help with that expense. 
Mr. Bienkowski said that wouldn’t fall under their responsibilities. 
 
Item 4 – General Services 
Mrs. Leidlein referred to the Board of Education portion of the audit expense increasing 2% and 
if we met with them each year. 
Mr. Bienkowski said there was an initial meeting and we received a copy of the completed audit 
which is a report of all of the accounts for the town.  We are a department within the town as a 
line item.  There were no meetings for us to go over the report.   
 
Mrs. Leidlein asked how much the town pays for the auditing expenses.   
Mr. Bienkowski said we pay $25,000 and the town pays approximately $50,000.   
Mrs. Leidlein asked if other town departments contributed, to which Mr. Bienkowski said they did 
not. 
 
Mr. Freedman referred to the organizational chart listing a number of the same positions in the 
Board of Education and town offices and if there were any discussions about partnering with the 
town on other areas. 
 
Mr. Bienkowski said he communicates closely with Bob Tait but there are differences in the 
educational and municipal accounting systems.  For the Board of Education to be on the town 
platform was very costly.  They came over to our system.  We also work cooperatively in the 
maintenance area.   
 
Mr. Freedman said the town and Board of Education have payroll, insurance and accounts 
payable and asked if there has been any conversation about not duplicating services on both 
sides. 
Dr. Erardi said we will discuss options with our goals but we are obligated to be cost efficient.  
This will be explored. 
 
Mr. Freedman was concerned that the legal cost of $40,000 was not enough and we should 
figure out a way to have more in that account.   
Dr. Erardi said we are looking at contract negotiations and litigation to be resolved.  In our 
partnership with Cirma we are confident they will present outstanding legal counsel.  We are 
responsible for the first $10,000.   
Mr. Bienkowski stated that Cirma is a division of CCM that insure municipalities and school 
districts exclusively.  They have a substantial reserve developed over the years. 
Board of Education    -4-    January 13, 2015 



 
Mr. Alexander mentioned the extra training for the tabletop exercise. 
Mr. Pompano said the tabletop exercise was put on by MHA Consulting in Arizona.  This 
involves the simulation of an incident in real time and we’ve had two so far.    
 
Mrs. Ku referred to the request for monitors. 
Mr. Pompano said we have exterior and interior cameras in schools.  The current computers we 
have don’t have what we need to view the cameras.  The ten computers are for each school, 
one for him, one for Dr. Erardi and one for the town. 
 
Item 5 – Continuing Education 
Mr. Alexander asked what level of continuing education is required by the state. 
Mrs. Gellis said that would include GED, ESL, and adult mandated basic education.  We pay a 
portion of those mandated services. 
 
Mr. Freedman asked about the bookkeeper and computer assistant positions. 
Mrs. Gellis said they were 52 weeks but not full time positions and are in the secretaries’ 
contract. 
Mr. Freedman asked their function September through December. 
Mrs. Gellis said during that time we work on the community brochures for adult education. 
 
Mrs. Ku asked about the summer of 2013 program for Sandy Hook School which was also run 
last summer. 
Dr. Gejda said that was the booster program run through the SERV Grant. 
Dr. Erardi said we would run that program again next summer.   
 
Item 6 – Benefits 
Mr. Freedman asked a question for Ms. Hamilton which was if we were saving $67,000 in 
benefits which Bob Tait mentioned at the Board of Finance meeting. 
Mr. Bienkowski said when we know what the final tally is for early retirement we would be in a 
better position to answer that question.   
 
Dr. Erardi said the early retirement incentive final date to submit is February 5 so we will have 
that information at the following meeting. 
 
Mr. Alexander asked if it was correct that regarding medical self-funded, if we have a decline in 
staff we don’t get a direct decline in the amount we put into the fund. 
 
Mr. Bienkowski said that was correct.  Initially, it was based on the number of employees.  The 
true number is much higher because it’s based on the current year.   
 
Mr. Freedman asked another question from Ms. Hamilton.  Is there a possible $200,000 savings 
in dental? 
Dr. Erardi said the timeline is the same as we are waiting for the incentives. 
 
Item 8 – Transportation 
Mr. Bienkowski said the budget for transportation is $4,096,000.  Our costs are still lower than 
four years ago.  Next year is last year of a five-year contract.   
 
 
Board of Education    -5-    January 13, 2015 



 
Mr. Freedman asked another question from Ms. Hamilton.  She wanted to know the status of 
the requested meeting with All-Star.   
Dr. Erardi said a subcommittee meeting took place.  We will bring management to a future 
Board meeting. 
Mr. Bienkowski said we have an administration meeting next week to see if certain things are 
possible and then will set up the finance committee meeting. 
Dr. Erardi said the subcommittee meeting with All-Star will take place prior to the 
February 17 Board of Education meeting. 
 
Mr. Alexander asked to go through the expenditures and details behind out of district 
placements. 
Mr. Bienkowski said the information is based on where they are expected to be next year.  We 
also have to pay for the paraprofessionals.  The DOJ grant was paying for one high cost 
transport and tuition through Dec. 31, 2014 so that will be our expense going forward.  The 
summer programs transportation costs have also gone up. 
 
Item 9 – Public Participation 
MOTION: Mr. Freedman moved to adjourn.  Mrs. Roche seconded.  Motion passes 
unanimously. 
 
Item 10 - Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 9:42 p.m.   
 
       Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
         __________________________________ 
                Keith Alexander 

  Chair 
 
  
 


















	1-13-15 minutes
	Att.1

